BIRMINGHAM AREA CABLE BOARD MEETING

Wednesday, December 21, 2016 at 7:45 am

***Birmingham Public Schools' Education & Administration Center

Evergreen Room***

31301 Evergreen Rd, Beverly Hills

- 1. Roll Call
- 2. Approve Meeting Minutes For Cable Board Meeting of November 16, 2016-M
- 3. Public Comments
- 4. PEG Grant Request- Beverly Hills-M
- 5. Treasurer's Report
- 6. Committee Reports
 - a. Cable Action Committee
 - b. PEG Committee
- 7. Executive Director's Report
- 8. Provider Related Topics
 - a. Comcast
 - b. AT&T
 - c. WOW
- 9. BAPA/BAMA Report
- 10. Old Business
- 11. New Business
- 12. Public Comments
- 13. Board Comments
- 14. Adjourn

PEG Committee meeting immediately following BACB meeting

Present: Bozell, Eick, McLain – Birmingham

Borgon, Maly, Verdi-Hus – Village of Beverly Hills

Ettenson – Village of Bingham Farms

Stakhiv – Village of Franklin Heldt, McAlear – Birmingham

Gugni – Village of Beverly Hills

Also Present: White – Executive Director

Currier – Attorney for Cable Board

Rota – Bloomfield Community Television

Mazurek – Comcast

Ali Hijazi and Spencer Tawa – Plante & Moran

McLain called the meeting to order at 7:45 AM in the Birmingham Public Schools' Education & Administration Center, Evergreen Room, 31301 Evergreen Road, Beverly Hills, MI.

AMEND AGENDA

Absent:

Motion by Ettenson, seconded by Stakhiv to amend the agenda to remove one item: **6. Treasurer's Report.**

Motion passed.

This item will be placed on the agenda of December's meeting.

APPROVE MINUTES OF CABLE BOARD MEETING HELD October 19, 2016

Motion by Ettenson, seconded by Bozell to approve the minutes of the Regular Cable Board Meeting on October 19, 2016, as presented.

Motion passed.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

None

PEG GRANT REQUEST – NEXT for upgraded audio/visual equipment etc.

Cris Braun, Executive Director of NEXT, gave a brief background of the organization and updates on recent activities: increasing its hours of operation including transportation, expanding its Support Services, and programs. There has been a 67% increase in new memberships over the previous year and 15% overall, bringing the total members to 1,500. Due to the popularity of the different and diverse programs, the Activities Room where they are held is filled almost to capacity. The audio and visual equipment in this room is outdated and unreliable which makes for poor quality presentations. NEXT is requesting financial support to help replace and purchase technology equipment, including a laptop for presentations, in order to provide quality programming and services to its members. Out of four bids received she has selected Sound Engineering as it was highly recommended by the Birmingham Public Schools, is familiar with the building where NEXT is located, and is the company that equipped the room where this

BACB meeting is being held this morning. Also included in the proposal is the purchase of another laptop which would increase the efficiency in the front office. Stakhiv suggested that NEXT look into sound system equipment that is geared especially for those who are hearing impaired. Braun remarked that the project would include the updating of the four speaker system which NEXT already has but she would look into a system Stakhiv referenced.

Borgon asked for an explanation of the different monthly bills for its Comcast Cable. McLain explained that the Michigan taxes and PEG fees fluctuate depending on how many people are accessing the system. Borgon suggested Braun look into this matter.

McLain clarified that one (1) computer was to run the equipment and the second was for the use in the front office. In the past the computer for the front office would not be funded as it is a communication device, as opposed to the other one which is part of the technology support services. Would this be setting precedence for other entities? Ettenson agreed with her concern.

As a Point of Procedure, Currier brought up a legal issue. Since several members of the Cable Board are also members of the NEXT Board (McLain and Borgon), it would be conflict of interest for them to be participating in the discussion, making the motion, or participating in the vote of the grant request and should recuse themselves. A simple majority of the members remaining would pass the motion.

Motion by Bozell, seconded by Ettenson to approve the PEG Grant request in an amount not to exceed \$9,257.47 to NEXT for an upgrade of the audio/visual equipment in the activities room, including a laptop for presentations and one additional laptop for the front office, and cable/internet service for the building.

Roll Call Vote:

Motion Passed (6-0)

Ms. McLain and Mr. Borgon recused themselves.

AUDIT PRESENTATION FOR FY 2015-16 BY PLANTE & MORAN

Ali Hijazi, Senior Manager, and Spencer Tawa, Auditor in charge of the Cable Board's audit, from Plante & Moran presented FY 2016 Audit Report of the Birmingham Area Cable Board and the financial statements as of June 30, 2016. Beth Bialy, Plante & Moran partner, was unable to attend the presentation.

The Cable Board was presented with two (2) documents: a Financial Statement (19 pages) and an End of Audit communication (4 pages). Hijazi reminded the Board that earlier it had received a four (4) page pre-audit communication discussing Plant & Moran's plan for the audit. The Independent Auditor's Report indicated that the Cable Board's financial statements received an unmodified audit opinion for 2016, which meant that the financial records were in compliance with accounting rules.

Spencer Tawa presented an overview of the financial statements and supplemental information. The Footnotes are relatively the same as last year with the exception of a new accounting

pronouncement, GASB Statement 72, *Fair Value Measurement and Application* upon Fair Value Measurement (page 14). The Board's investments were CDs and Bonds and were valued at Level 2 inputs. On page 18, Budgetary Comparison Schedule – General Fund, he pointed out that the Board was within its budget.

Borgon asked for a clarification about the Fund Balance – Unassigned on page 7. On page 5, under <u>The Board as a Whole</u>, 4th bullet point, Ettenson inquired about 2015 expenditure with BCTV. Tawa gave an estimate.

Hijazi reviewed the "Management" letter, a 4 page document from Plante & Moran, dated November 3, 2016. Section I – Internal Control Related Matters Identified in an Audit. He noted three (3) material weaknesses which the firm had identified as deficiencies in the Board's internal control and gave its recommendations. 1. Implement a process at year end to compute and include this activity in the financial records prior to the commencement of the financial statement audit. 2. Implement formal procedures, such as using an Excel spreadsheet, to track each community's revenue throughout the year and timely follow-ups, when necessary. 3. Implement additional preventive measures for internal control of online banking access and transactions. Banks and Credit Unions can work with the Board to strengthen the internal controls. Section II – Required Communications with Those Charged with Governance. This is similar to the prior year, with the exception of the new accounting pronouncement, GASB Statement 72. In summary, this was a fiscally responsible good year for the Cable Board.

There were no questions from the Board. McLain thanked Hijazi and Tawa for their presentation.

PAYMENT OF ADMINISTRATIVE GRANTS FOR FY 2015-16

White referred to the report that was in the Board's packet, <u>Calculation of Administrative Grants November 2016</u>. This sheet breaks down each communities' total revenues and percentage of the total Committed Franchise fees which can be found on page 7 of the Audit under **Fund Balance**.

She remarked that this had been discussed in detail with the Treasurer, the Chairperson, and Maly.

Motion by Ettenson, seconded by Eick to approve the Administrative Grants for the FY2015-16 in the following amounts: Birmingham-\$143,401.68, Beverly Hills-\$57,693.06, Franklin-\$24,929.10, and Bingham Farms-\$11,158.74.

Roll Call Vote: Motion Passed (8-0)

COMMITTEE REPORTS

Cable Action Committee

Verdi-Hus stated that Maly, White, McLain, and she met on November 3, 2016 in the Baldwin Library in Birmingham. One topic of discussion dealt with the unused grant money. It was noted that the Beverly Hills Village Hall's audio equipment might need to be upgraded when the new room is completed. Another discussion was about the Cable Board taking a pro-active approach

to the communities and inquiring what their future needs might be. McLain mentioned that even a ballpark figure would be helpful to the Board in its planning of how money is used. McLain also mentioned that it had been suggested that a Board Representative reach out to the communities at the beginning of the fiscal year. Verdi-Hus suggested that a letter could be sent to the communities. Online banking was also discussed and is something the Board might want to look into in light of what the Auditors had just said. The next Cable Action meeting will be Thursday, December 1 at 5:30 PM in the Baldwin Library.

PEG Committee

McAlear, Chairman, was not able to attend the meeting today. White reported that they had received an email from BCTV regarding the upcoming winter sports activities. They have proposed covering seven (7) different sporting events (boys and girls) which would cost \$2,500 per event, totaling \$17,500.

Motion by Borgon, seconded by Stakhiv to approve payment to BCTV in an amount not to exceed \$17,500 for the filming of seven (7) winter sporting events at the cost of \$2,500 per event.

Roll Call Vote: Motion passed (8-0)

There will be a brief PEG meeting following the Board meeting.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S REPORT

White referred to her monthly report dated November 10, 2016. One complaint that was pending from her last report has been resolved. Besides a problem with Comcast TV service, it also involved issues with repeated attempts to contact the Comcast office, the language barrier, the rude behavior of Customer Service, and the long wait times to reach a representative. An apology was issued to the customer for the problems he had experienced and those issues were referred to the local Comcast leaders for review as well.

Since the last meeting there have been four (4) complaints: a Birmingham resident complained about the placement of an AT&T Uverse TV dish directly outside of his condo. The resident had not ordered this service and felt there were more appropriate locations for it, such as in a common area. (The complaint is pending); a Birmingham resident had cancelled his Comcast service, returned the equipment, but was still being billed. (The billing issue has been resolved and the case is closed); a Beverly Hills resident was being billed by Comcast for two (2) inactive modems. His bill has been adjusted to reflect the appropriate corrections. (This case is closed); since 2008 a Beverly Hills couple who have Comcast internet service, have also been billed for Comcast cable TV service when, in fact, they actually have Dish Network. They are asking for reimbursement for what they have paid. (The complaint is pending).

Ettenson complimented Michelle Plummer and Kyle Mazurek of Comcast on the handling of the multiple issues associated with the first pending complaint.

The account balances for the MBS, BBCU, and Beverly Hills accounts were provided to the Board, in addition to the Revenue and Expense Budget reports for the month of October, 2016.

Since her last report, White has written four (4) checks which included a large one for quarterly payments on behalf of the BACB to the Charter Township of Bloomfield for October-December 2016 and two (2) payments to the Charter Township of Bloomfield on behalf of the BACB in the amounts of \$10,000 and \$5,000 for BCTV filming September and October sports events.

Additional Notes:

White informed the Board of AT&T's new streaming service, "DirecTV Now", which is expected to be launched this quarter. Hulu is expected to launch its competitive service in early 2017. Google's parent company has decided to discontinue its high-speed fiber internet expansion. It has found that wireless delivery methods are cheaper. However, Google Fiber will continue service in those cities where it is already installed. There has been news in the trade journals about discussions between AT&T and Time Warner about a possible merger. AT&T would like to add more content for the new DirecTV Now which Time Warner could provide. White listed numerous Comcast channel lineup changes.

For the benefit of the public, McLain had some comments about the complaint process. If a customer submits a complaint to BACB, either online or on the phone, it goes immediately to the provider who makes an effort to reach out to the customer. Please provide the appropriate contact phone number. If someone from the provider returns the call and needs to leave a message it will include direct contact information. Please return that call because after several unsuccessful attempts to contact you they automatically send a letter. If a resident has any questions about an installation of satellite equipment through AT&T and are in a multi-dwelling unit, such as a condo, you should go directly to the Condo Association. If the service is for you and you have a question, please go directly to AT&T first.

PROVIDER RELATED TOPICS

a. Comcast

Kyle Mazurek, Comcast representative was in attendance. He had three (3) updates: For those subscribers with the X1 platform which is the new video platform, Netflix came aboard in late October, early November; about 2 weeks ago Comcast rolled out 1G high speed internet service for the residents in Detroit, which makes it the first community in Michigan to receive it. Service to other parts of southeast Michigan might be launched in late 2017; Comcast has ended its nationwide annual United Way campaign and its employees pledged large amounts of money for local United Ways and non-profits.

McLain expressed appreciation to the Escalation Team of all three (3) providers, and as White had noted in her report, Comcast has been responding very quickly to the residents and to BACB.

b. AT&T/Uverse/Direct TV

There was no representative present. There were no other updates other than the merger is progressing.

Stakhive related that a Franklin resident with AT&T TV service was having difficulty getting into the Governmental channels and had complained about the numerous steps required, as compared to that of Comcast. She inquired if there could be a conversation with AT&T about streamlining the process. McLain explained that AT&T has now been updated: hit "99" to get to the Governmental channels.

c. WOW

There was no representative present.

BAPA/BAMA REPORT

Steve Rota referred to his memo to BACB, dated November 9, 2016, and pointed out the seven (7) completed **BAMA** Programs which were regularly scheduled municipal meetings, Board of Zoning Appeals meeting, the Birmingham Advisory Board meeting, Multi Modal Transportation meeting, and the BACB meeting.

For the **BAPA** Programs, from the BACB area individual producers and organizations, twentynine (29) programs were taped. He listed all the programs.

Regarding the **PRODUCER WORKSHOP**, Rota reminded the Board that one-on-one sessions are offered for those who are interested in producing their own show and to those who want to learn how to run the equipment. This change in format seems to be working out better. Residents can contact BCTV at 248-433-7790 to schedule an appointment date and time. There is no fee for those living in one of the four BACB communities.

The Program Development Committee met a couple weeks ago and approved two (2) new shows: one (1) will highlight non-profit organizations and the other will highlight financial planning. The first one will be in production in late November and both should be on air late December or at the beginning of the year.

As mentioned earlier in the meeting, BCTV was approved to cover seven (7) winter sports events which is about average per season: Girls Basketball, Boys Wrestling, Unified Team Hockey, two (2) Boys Basketball games, Boys Swim and Dive, and Girls Water Polo.

Rota stated that he had been working with Ellen Marshall, Village of Beverly Hills Clerk. The Village Hall has been under construction and there had been some disruption in the control room where BCTV houses its equipment. Originally all of it was kept in that room but the contractors were unable to work around that scenario so Rota moved the equipment into the kitchen area. There was also problem with some fiber lines so with assistance from Comcast the box was moved to a separate spot in the office. Once the construction is completed, all the equipment will be re-installed in the control room. Since the contractor had not anticipated this work, McLain posed the question of who would be financially responsible for the several moves of this expensive and fairly new equipment. Rota suggested that BCTV staff might be able to put some of it in place but would probably need to contact the original vendor, Advanced Lighting and Sound, to get everything up and running.

Borgon clarified that the coverage of the sporting events are between Seaholm and Groves. Rota explained that the hockey is a unified team and the game is chosen depending on the availability of the BCTV staff who would be filming it. In response to Borgon's inquiry about the two new programs which had been discussed last meeting, Rota stated that one (1) would start production on Monday and the other would start production pretty soon.

Referring to an earlier discussion and in light of the construction in the Beverly Hills building, Maly wondered if Rota was aware of anything that might be needed which would fall under BACB's capabilities. Rota replied that the equipment in the control room was new and installed only 1-2 years ago. There might be a few things to discuss in the PEG meeting.

OLD BUSINESS

None

NEW BUSINESS

None

PUBLIC COMMENTS

None

BOARD COMMENTS

None.

The meeting was adjourned at 8:48 AM.

MEMORANDUM

To: Birmingham Area Cable Board

From: Ellen E. Marshall, Assistant Manager/Clerk

Re: Grant Request – Reconnection & Upgrades to Beverly Hills CATV Equipment

Date: December 9, 2016

The Village of Beverly Hills, in partnership with Bloomfield Community Television, is respectfully requesting your consideration of a grant in the amount of \$15,000.00 to cover the costs associated with reconnecting and upgrading the CATV equipment in the Beverly Hills municipal building. The control room and equipment was installed in 2001. Due to the Village municipal building renovations that have taken place over the past six months, all of the cable equipment and wiring was removed. The following list explains the work that is necessary:

- → All equipment and wiring to be reconnected that was disconnected
- → Upgrade audio system in Council Room with new dais and lectern microphones and speakers
- → Install new televisions; one in the Council Room and one in the lobby

As outlined in the Birmingham Area Cable Board Grant Policy, cable customers will benefit from this upgrade in that it will enhance our current method of communications during public meetings.

Attached is a budgetary quote from Advanced Lighting & Sound for the above referenced work. Since it is a quote and not a bid, we are asking for \$15,000 anticipating that there could be unexpected cost overruns. Any amount not spent, will be returned to the Cable Board. We respectfully request your consideration of a grant in the amount of \$15,000.00 to cover the costs associated with reconnecting and upgrading the cable equipment.

Thank you for your consideration.

attachment

Advanced Lighting & Sound



Phone: 248-817-2092 Fax: 248-817-2093 1026 Maplelawn Drive Troy, MI 48084 **SALES Order**

Number:

9912

Date:

Received: 10:59 am on 12/12/2016

12/12/2016

Account No. 614 City of Beverly Hills 18500 W. 13 Mile Rd.

Beverly Hills, MI 48025 USA Account Phone: (313) 646-6404

Ellen Marshall

Est. Time: 2:00

Desc.: Council Chambers Upgrade

Priority: Normal

Status: New

Taken By: Shawn Watts

Type: Sales Payment: Check

Qty.	Item ID	Description	ИОМ	Per Unit	Total
1	Core 110f	Unified Series Core with 24 local I/O channels, 128x128 network I/O channels, dual LAN ports, telephone POTS, two GPIO blocks, 16 AEC channels, 1RU	EA	\$2,430.00	\$2,430.00
1	IPad Air 16GB	Tablet Computer	EA	\$475.00	\$475.00
13	MX412S/C	Cardioid-12" Gooseneck Condenser Microphone, Attached Preamp with XLR, Shock Mount, Flange Mount, Snap-Fit Foam Windscreen, Mute Switch, LED Indicator	EA	\$205.00	\$2,665.00
1.00	Install	Install Materials - Single gang XLRF aluminum plate (Podium connection on Dias)	EA	\$25.00	\$25.00
3	MX412D/C	Cardioid-12" Desktop Gooseneck Condenser Microphone, Attached 10´ XLR Cable, Logic Functions, Programmable Switch and LED Indicator, Attached Desktop	EA	\$261.00	\$783.00
13	AT8646QM	Microphone Shock-mount Plate	EA	\$47.00	\$611,00
2	NB1M1-50	50 FT LO-Z MIC BLK NTK XLRF/XLRM (AUX Mics)	EA	\$24.00	\$48.00
1	NB1M1-15	15 FT LO-Z MIC BLK NTK XLRF/XLRM (Podium)	EA	\$17.00	\$17.00
4	CONTROLCRV-WH	CONTROL CRV WHITE	EA	\$201.00	\$804.00
1	SPA4-60	1/2 RU 4 Ch ENERGY STAR amplifier / Multichannel operation 60 watts into 8/4 Ohm, Bridged pair operation 200 watts into 8/4 Ohm, 250 watts in 70V/100V	EA	\$560.00	\$560.00
	A multichannel amplifier allows for control over speakers when mics are active close to the speaker				
	^				
1.00	Labor	Installation Labor- Re-mount 3 Sony PTZ onto wall mounts on walls, re-run existing video/power/control cables.	HR	\$360.00	\$360.00
1	49LW340C-EGH	49" 1080p LED HDTV	EA	\$702.00	\$702.00

Advanced Lighting & Sound



Phone: 248-817-2092 Fax: 248-817-2093 1026 Maplelawn Drive Troy, MI 48084 **SALES Order**

Number:

9912

Date:

12/12/2016

Qty.	Item ID	Description	иом	Per Unit	Total
1	TS325TU	MEDIUM, 25" EXTENSION, SWING ARMS	EA	\$339.00	\$339.00
1	55LW340c-EGH	55" LED LCD TV (EDU/GOVT/HOW Pricing) EA \$823.0		\$823.00	\$823.00
1	TS525TU	THIN SWING ARM (LARGE) EA \$424.		\$424.00	\$424.00
1	ALS SDI/HDMI	SDI to HDMI Convertor PL 368	EA	\$87.00	\$87.00
1	YAC-406	Power Extension Y Cable, Dual NEMA 5-15R to NEMA 5-15P, 1.5 ft	EA	\$14.00	\$14.00
1	MTM1U	Micro-Adjust Tilt Wall Mount, Medium (for 32" Control Room TV)	EA	\$153.00	\$153.00
1.00	Install	Install Materials- Audio cable, 26 XLR connectors, fasteners, misc	EA	\$260.00	\$260.00
1.00	Labor	Installation Labor- rewire all audio cabling to dias and equipment. Terminate at equipment rack. Programming, testing and training	HR	\$3,100.00	\$3,100.00
		Total (excluding taxes):		cluding taxes):	\$14,680.00

Date:/				
'To' Travel Time:	Arrived at:	Departed at:	From' Travel Time:	
CUSTOMER SIGNATURE:	- It	_	TECH SIGNATURE:	

MEMORANDUM

DATE: December 14, 2016

TO: Board Members

FROM: Cathy White

Re: Monthly Report

CUSTOMER COMPLAINTS

Complaint No. 2016-31, which was closed last month after the Comcast escalation team was unable to reach this Birmingham resident, was re-opened after we were notified that the resident had subsequently left voice mail messages at the contact number but had not received a call back. An escalation team representative has since spoken to this resident to advise him that their records reflect the cancellation of his service and he does not owe anything on the account (there is a negative balance of \$-11.21). A letter of apology was mailed to him and this complaint is closed.

Complaint No.2016-33, which was pending on the date of our last meeting, has been resolved. This complaint was received from a Beverly Hills couple who have Comcast internet service but were incorrectly being billed for Comcast cable TV as well. The escalation team has advised us that they were unable to locate any cancellation request from this couple but they have applied a credit of \$746.35 as a compromise. This complaint is now closed.

We have received three (3) complaints since the date of our last meeting. Complaint No. 2016-34 was submitted by one of our Beverly Hills board members who was experiencing problems with the Wi-Fi service in his home about 10 days after WOW had installed a new motherboard for him. A WOW technician was able to resolve this problem and this complaint is now closed.

Complaint No. 2016-35 was received from a Beverly Hills resident who had submitted a prior billing complaint that was resolved. However, he had questions about a subsequent increase in his monthly Comcast bill and also had a new issue regarding a Comcast wire that had come down on his property. The resident has indicated that the wire has been repaired and this complaint is now closed.

Complaint No. 2016-36 was submitted on behalf of the same resident to address the lingering billing questions. The subscriber's bill had been increased from \$99 to \$129 and the subscriber requested an explanation for the increase. An escalation team representative has advised him that the increase was due to his promotion rolling to every day pricing. He has been repackaged

into a 24-month promotion with a term agreement and written confirmation has been provided to him. This complaint is now closed.

FINANCIAL

The account balance for the MBS, BBCU and Beverly Hills accounts will be provided via hard copies at the meeting, in addition to budget to actual figures. This information will also be emailed to all Board members in advance of the meeting.

CHECK DISBURSEMENT

I have written one (1) check since the date of our last meeting as follows:

1. NEXT (PEG Grant) - \$9,257.47

ADDITIONAL NOTES:

- 1. The Wall Street Journal reported on November 11, 2016 that the FCC has sent a letter to AT&T to express concerns over the telecom company's practice of exempting its own streaming video services from data-usage caps for its wireless customers. In the letter, the FCC indicated that AT&T's practice "may obstruct and harm consumers by constraining their ability to access existing and future mobile video services not affiliated with AT&T."
- 2. Comcast has notified us of certain price changes beginning January 1, 2017. The monthly cost of its Digital Starter and Digital Preferred packages will increase by \$1.00. The Broadcast TV Fee will increase from its current price of \$4.50 to \$5.00 per month and the Regional Sports Network Fee will increase from its current price of \$3.00 to \$5.00 per month.
- 3. Comcast has also notified us that its right to continue carrying Fox College Sports Atlantic, Fox College Sports Central and Fox College Sports Pacific will expire on December 31, 2016. At that time, they will lose authorization with respect to carrying these signals and must remove the programming from their lineup on January 1, 2017.

Memo



To: BACB

From: Steve Rota

cc: Greg Kowalski, Cathy White & Elaine McLain

Date: 12/14/16

Re: Report November 17th, 2016 through December 21st, 2016.

BAMA Programs

During this time period we've completed six regularly scheduled municipal meetings, Board of Zoning Appeals meeting, Birmingham Advisory Board Meeting, Two Multi Modal Transportation meetings, the BACB meeting and two Baldwin Public Library Board Meetings.

BAPA Programs

From BACB area individual producers and organizations we've taped 25 programs. From individuals:

- Three Eye on Oakland hosted by Chuck Moss & David Potts.
- ❖ Three Managing the Problems of Daily Living hosted by Linda Sircus.
- Four Tough Talk hosted by Paul Taros.
- Four Michigan Entrepreneur hosted by Tara Kachaturoff.
- Five Patriot Lessons hosted by Judge Michael Warren.

From BACB area organizations:

- . Birmingham Musicale.
- Berkshire Middle School Annual Improv show.
- . BACB Sports Wrestling.
- BACB Sports Girls Basketball.
- . Birmingham Concert Band.
- Daughters of American Revolution 'Annual Good Citizens Awards'.

PRODUCER WORKSHOP

We are offering a one on one session for those who are interested in producing their own show and to those who want experience behind the scenes. Please call 248-433-7790 and we can schedule a date and time with you.

BACB UPCOMING WINTER SPORTS SCHEDULE (5 Events)

Hockey1/7 B'ham Ice Arena.

Boys Basketball 1/17 Groves .

Boys Swimming 2/9 Groves.

Boys Basketball 2/14 Seaholm.

Girls Water Polo TBA.

HAPPY HOLIDAYS and HAPPY NEW YEAR!!!!